第七課重點整理
本課文法重點：頻率副詞的應用
依頻率高低排列：always總是；一直（100%）－＞usually通常（95%）－＞

                often經常（75%）－＞sometimes偶爾；有時候（35~50%）

                －＞seldom很少（2~10%）－＞never絕不；從不（0%）
頻率副詞放在句中的位置如下：

（一）be動詞的後面   

     例句：Joe is always early to bed. 喬總是很早就上床睡覺。

           We are never late for school. 我們從未上學遲到。
（二）一般動詞的前面  
     例句：Jack sometimes walks to the park. 傑克偶爾走路到公園。

           Pauline and her brother seldom do their homework after school.

           寶琳和她哥哥放學後很少做作業。

（三）助動詞和一般動詞的中間

     例句：You don’t always wash your car. 你並不總是洗車子。

           Does Mrs. Lee often cook dinner for her family?

           李太太經常為家人煮晚餐嗎？

（四）簡答句中，一律放在be動詞或助動詞的前面。

     例句：Are you always late to work?  你總是上班遲到嗎？
           Yes, I always am.

           No, I seldom am.

           Does Momoko often come to this pub? Momoko經常到這家酒吧嗎？

           Yes, she often does.

            No, she never does.

· often前面如果有程度副詞very（很）、 rather（相當）、pretty（十分）

quite（相當）修飾的時候，often只能放在句尾。

     例句：They jog in the park very often.  他們很常在公園慢跑。

           Helen eats her dinner at 7:45 in the evening quite often.
           海倫很常在晚上七點四十五分吃晚餐。

· sometimes放在句中有三個位置：（1）句首。（2）句中。（3）句尾。

     例句：Sometimes Paul walks to the bus stop in the morning.（句首）

           保羅早上偶爾走路到公車站。

           Pauline sometimes eats her breakfast at 8:10.（句中）

           寶琳偶爾在早上八點十分吃早餐。

           Mr. Chen is sometimes late to bed at night.（句中）

           陳先生晚上偶爾很晚上床睡覺。

           They wash their car on Sunday afternoon sometimes.（句尾）
          他們偶爾在星期天下午洗車子。

· 否定頻率副詞如果放在句首時，句子要形成倒裝句。

     例句： He is seldom early to work in the morning.他早上很少很早去上班。

     －－＞Seldom is he early to work in the morning.

           My mom never sleeps in the afternoon.我媽下午從未睡覺。

     －－＞Never does my mom sleep in the afternoon.

           You seldom help your classmates. Why? 你很少幫同學，為什麼？

     －－＞Seldom do you help your classmates. Why?

重要片語：

1. be thankful for 接名詞、動名詞或代名詞   感謝….
I am thankful for your helping me.（for後面接動名詞）我很感謝你幫我。

He is thankful for your present.（for後面接名詞）他很感謝你的禮物。

2. be happy for接名詞、動名詞或代名詞    高興…..
We are happy for your coming here. （for後面接動名詞）我們很高興你來。

Mrs. Brown is happy for your help. （for後面接名詞）布朗太太很高興你的幫忙。

The Wangs are happy for him.（for後面接代名詞）王先生一家人都為他高興。
3. be proud of接名詞、動名詞或代名詞   以….為榮；以…為傲

   Her mother is very proud of her brother.（of後面接名詞）她媽媽以哥哥為傲。

   We are proud of your passing the English test.（of後面接動名詞）

   我們以你通過英文考試為榮。

   His parents are very proud of him.（of後面接代名詞）他父母以他為榮。

4.move to …. 搬到什麼地方
   Joe moved to Taipei last week. 喬上星期搬到台北。

   They moved to the new apartment last Saturday.他們上星期六搬到新公寓。

5.celebrate…with…用什麼東西慶祝某件事

   His parents celebrate his birthday with a big party.

他父母以大的派對慶祝他的生日

The Americans celebrate the Thanksgiving with a big dinner every year.

美國人每年用大餐來慶祝感恩節。

重要佳句：

1. We seldom have dinner together now. 我們現在很少一起吃晚餐。
2. I’m thankful we are all together on Thanksgiving.我很感謝我們在感恩節時聚在一起。

3. We are also happy Ted is here.我們也很高泰德能來。

4. This is my first Thanksgiving party.這是我第一個感恩節的派對。

5. What are you thankful for? 你/你們要感謝什麼呢？

6. I am thankful I finally passed the Chinese test.

我很感謝我終於通過中文考試。

7. Are you thankful for something?你有一些事要感謝的嗎？

8. In the first year, they had a lot of problems.第一年，他們遇到很多問題。

9. They had a good harvest the next year. 他們隔年大豐收。
10. The really important thing is always thanksfulness. 最重要的是要懷著感恩的心。

第八課重點整理
本課文法重點：表時間的介系詞（in、on、at）的應用

in 後面接較長的時間
in the morning（the afternoon、the evening、the night）在早上、在下午、在晚上、在深夜

in＋季節名稱 ： in spring（summer、fall、winter）在春天、在夏天、在秋天、在冬天

in＋月份名稱 ：in January（February、March、April…）在一月、在二月、在三月、在四月…
in＋年代名稱 ：in 2002（1896、1692….）在2002年、在1896年、在1692年…
in＋月份名稱，年代名稱 ：in May, 2005在2005年五月

in August, 2001在2001年八月
in the＋序數詞＋名詞of the year（month、week）：in the frist day of the year在一年的第一天、in the second week of the month在這個月的第二個禮拜
on後面接特定的時間

on＋星期名稱 ：on Sunday（Monday、Tuesday、Wednesday…）在星期天、在星期一、在星期二、在星期三….

on＋節日名稱：on Christmas Day（Thanksgiving、Mother’s Day…）

               在聖誕節、在感恩節、在母親節

on＋月份名稱，日期 ：on April 1st 在四月一日、on July 7th在七月四日
on＋月份名稱，日期，年代：on May 25, 2004在2004年五月25日

on＋the＋序數詞＋星期名稱＋of＋月份名稱：on the third Sunday of June在六月的第三個星期天、on the fourth Thursday of November在十一月的第四個星期四

on＋星期名稱＋morning（afternoon、evening、night）：on Saturday night星期六晚上、on Tuesday afternoon星期二下午…
on the same date 在同一日期

on the morning （afternoon、evening）of June, 24 在六月24日的早上（下午、晚上）

at後面接明確的一點時間

at 7:00  七點整   at 10:05 十點零五分  at 6:45 六點四十五分

at noon 在中午   at night 在晚上  at midnight 在半夜

重要片語：
1. have to＋原型動詞  必須….

I have to go to Taipei now. 我現在必須到台北。

He has to wash his car on Saturday. 他星期六必須洗車。

2. stay＋地方with＋人  和某人一起待在某地方

My parents stayed home with my little sister last night.昨晚我父母在家陪我小妹。
We stayed at the school with our teacher yesterday. 昨天我們和老師一起待在學校。

3. be not always  並不一定是

My birthday is not always on Thanksgiving.我的生日並不一定在感恩節。

Mr. Wang is not always happy. 王先生並不一定很快樂。

4. be important for     對….是很重要的

   The national day is very important for every country. 國慶日對每個國家都很重要。
   Parents are very important for every child.父母對每個小還都很重要。

重要佳句：

1.I had to stayed home with my family. 我必須待在家陪家人。

2.My birthday is also Thanksgiving?我的生日也是感恩節嗎？

3.It is not always on the same date. 它並非總是在同一天。

4.It’s just like Mother’s Day.就像是母親節一樣。

5.In the USA, Father’s Day is on the third Sunday of June.在美國，父親節是六月的第三個星期天。

6.I didn’t know that. 這我可不知道。

7.The English names of the months are hard. 月份的英文名字好難喔。
8.What do you mean? 你的意思是什麼？

9.We don’t need so many different names.我們不需要這麼多不同的名稱。

10.Only Americans and Canadians have Thanksgiving.只有美國人和加拿大人過感恩節。

11.Every holiday has a story about it.每個節日都有關於它的故事。

第九課重點整理

非人稱的有：指某個地方有什麼東西或人

句型1：There is a/an＋單數可數名詞＋表地方的介系詞片語.

   例句： There is an ox on the farm. 農場上有一隻牛。

          There is a pretty girl over there. 那利有一個漂亮的女孩。

          There is an old dictionary on the desk.桌上有一本舊字典。

句型2：There is ＋不定數量詞＋單數不可數名詞＋表地方的介系詞片語.
          There is some water in the bowl.魚缸裡有一些水。

          There is much money on the table桌上有許多錢。

          There is little food in the lunch box.便當盒裡幾乎沒有食物。

句型3：There are＋數量詞/不定數量詞＋複數可數名詞＋表地方的介系詞片語.

          There are two boys in the classroom. 教室裡有兩個男孩。

          There are some birds in the tree. 樹上有一些小鳥。

          There are one cat and two dogs under the table.桌子底下有一隻貓和兩隻狗。

          There are several students beside the desk.書桌旁邊有幾個學生。
否定句只要在be（is、are）動詞後面加上not即可。

疑問句的形成則將There is改為Is there、There are改為Are there即可。

 There is not a cat under the chair. 椅子底下沒有貓。

There is not any food on the table. 餐桌上沒有食物。

There are not any basketballs in the basket.籃子裡沒有籃球。

Is there a fish in the bowl?魚缸裡有魚嗎？Yes, there is. 是的，有。

                                     No, there isn’t.不，沒有。

Are there three puppies in the garden?花園裡有三隻小狗嗎？

Yes, there are. 是的，有。    No, there aren’t.不，沒有。

重要片語：

1. play…with…和…一起玩耍
Helen is playing baseball with her classmates at the school.海倫正在學校和同學一起打棒球。

Joseph played the snowballs with his sister last winter.約瑟夫去年冬天和妹妹一起打雪球。

2. receive…from…從某人處收到某東西

I received this birthday present from my teacher last Sunday.上星期天我收到老師送我的生日禮物。

Every child receives present from Santa Claus on Christmas.聖誕節每個小孩都收到聖誕老人送的禮物。

3. talk about…談論某人/某事

We talked about our coming English exam last night.昨晚我們談論即將到來的英文考試。

His teacher talked about him with his parents.他的老師和他父母談論他的事情。
4. go to church 上教堂做禮拜

People go to church on Christmas Eve.聖誕夜人們上教堂做禮拜。

I don’t like to go to church on Sunday.星期天我不喜歡上教堂。

5.think of 想到某人/某事

   He always thinks of his girlfriend. 他常常想到他的女朋友。

   They seldom think of helping others.他們很少想到幫助別人。

6.look for…尋找某人/某物

   Jack is looking for his shoes in the living room.傑克正在客廳找鞋子。

   Miss Lin looked for her missing dog. 林小姐尋找她那隻失蹤的狗。

   I look for my mom in the department store.我在百貨公司找我媽。

7.How often…? 多久一次
   How often do you visit your grandparents?  Once a month.

   你多久探望你的祖父母？一個月一次。

   How often does Joe play golf? He never does.

   喬多久打一次高爾夫球？他從沒打過。

重要佳句：

1. Christmas is not a holiday in Taiwan. 聖誕節在台灣不是假日。

2. How did you celebrate it before?你們以前是怎麼慶祝的？

3. The weather was very cold in winter in my hometown.在我家鄉冬天很寒冷。

4. We could also receive some presents from Santa Claus.我們也收到一些聖誕老人送的禮物。

5. There is no snow in some places.某些地方沒有下雪。

6. Christmas is in the summer season there. 那裡的聖誕節是夏天。

7. I remember we celebrated Christmas on the beach. 我記得我們在海灘上慶祝聖誕節。

8. I think I like the weather in Taiwan.我想我喜歡台灣的天氣。

9. People in many countries celebrate Christmas.很多國家的人都慶祝聖誕節。

10. It is a day of peace and friendship.它是個祥和起友誼的日子。
